Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

Lindora Wellness, Inc.
17838 Fitch Ave
Irvine, CA 92614
https://www.lindora.com/

Up to $5,000,000.00 in Common Stock at $5.00
Minimum Target Amount: $10,000.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: Lindora Wellness, Inc.

Address: 17838 Fitch Ave, Irvine, CA 92614
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: January 01, 2022

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $10,000.00 | 2,000 shares of Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $5,000,000.00 | 1,000,000 shares of Common Stock
Type of Security Offered: Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $5.00

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $250.00

*"Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
bonus info below.

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEO™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1935 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the
Commeon Stock.

Investment Incentives and Bonuses®
Investment Based Perks (General Public)
- Invest between $250 and $999 and receive 10% off e-commerce sales for 3 months.**

- Invest between $1,000 and $2,499 and receive 20% off e-commerce sales for 3



months.*™

- Invest between $2,500 and $9,999 and receive 30% off e-commerce sales for 3
months.**

- Invest between $10,000 and $24,999 and receive 5% bonus shares + 30% off e-
commerce sales for 3 months.**

- Invest $25,000 or more and receive 10% bonus shares + 30% off e-commerce sales for
5 months.™™

Investment Based Perks (Employees)
- Active Emplovees will receive 10% bonus shares when they invest in the raise™
*All perks occur when the offering is completed.

“*The discount applies to purchases of products for personal use, and not for
commercial distribution

The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus

Lindora Wellness, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all investments that

are committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc.
OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Common Stock at
$5.00 / share, yvou will receive 110 Common Stock, meaning vou'll own 110 shares for
$500. Fractional shares will not be distributed and share bonuses will be determined
by rounding down to the nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor's eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

StartEngine OWNers shall receive the greater of the number of Bonus Shares issuable
pursuant to the StartEngine Owners Bonus and the number of shares issuable under
Company Perks, however, shall not be entitled to both.

Insider Investment Notice

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.

The Company and its Business



Company Overview

Lindora is an expert, specialty medical practice devoted to weight loss and wellness
for all and we're on a mission to turn the tide on the obesity epidemic. Our unique
approach is one of the most effective ways for people to lose weight, reverse chronic
conditions, reduce health risks, take better care of themselves and get on track to
living healthier, happier lives. Born in Southern California, the epicenter of healthy
living, Lindora was one of the first companies to incorporate ketogenic eating plans as
the basis for a weight loss and healthy lifestyle. Lindora uses psychological and
behavioral science to help people lose weight and teach them how to keep it off for
good. The company owns various trademarks for our brand and products.

Corporate Structure

Lindora Wellness, Inc. is a Delaware C-Corp. that is headquartered in California.
Lindora Wellness, Inc was initially organized as Lindora LLC, a Delaware LLC on April
17, 2009 and converted to a Delaware C-Corp on Jan 01, 2022. The original business
was formed in 1971 as Lindora Medical Clinic by Dr. Stamper. Prior to 2009, the
Company was organized as Lindora, Inc.

Qur parent company, Lindora Wellness Holdings LLC, was founded in Delaware in
2022, Lindora Wellness Inc has been a wholly-owned subsidiary of Lindora Wellness
Holdings LLC since 2022. The parent company is a single purpose investment holding
company.

Litigation Disclosure

The Company is currently involved in two active litigation matters: (a) an employment
claim, (b) a malpractice claim. Both matters are at varying stages. Please refer to our
Risk Factors section of our offering materials for full details on the current status of
these matters.

Competitors and Industry

Lindora operates at the crossroads of the weight loss and weight management diet
industry. The global weight loss and weight management diet industry is expected to
reach $295.3 billion by 2027 according to Allied Market Research (May 2021). While
we do not believe that any single competitor offers the scale of services and products
or the efficacy that Lindora does, we do track competitors like Sanford by Profile,
Jenny Craig and, on a larger scale, dominant players like Weight Watchers and Atkins
(products) as well as up-and-comers like Noom. For reference, Weight Watcher (as a
publicly traded company) has a $1.1B+ market cap as of Dec 16 2021.

Unlike other weight loss companies, Lindora’s unique medical credentials allow us to
address various aspects of the weight loss and wellness market, including offering
specialized medical weight loss services in clinics and the development of a digital
platform, mass distribution of proprietary nutritional foods and supplements, and
plans for partnerships with primary care physicians.



Current Stage and Roadmap

We’ve already made significant progress in creating a major, respected brand in
Southern California. Now, we're poised to take our business to the next level. Here are
just a few of our major accomplishments reflecting our current state:

» Opened 33 medical clinics in Southern California
« Served hundreds of thousands patients

» Created what we believe is a first-of-it’s kind subscription membership plan to
provide patient affordability and recurring revenue predictability

» Launched an e-commerce strategy to offer our products throughout the world

» Added high-margin ancillary services like hormone replacement therapy, Zerona
body contouring, specialty wellness injections and cryotherapy.

» Recruited a world-class team including Dr. Amy Lee, a leading expert in nutrition
and obesity

Moving forward into 2022, our four-pronged business approach addresses multiple
opportunities within the $295.3 billion weight loss and wellness category:

« Expansion of specialized medical weight loss and wellness services delivered in
clinics across the country with compelling unit-level economics

» Development of an Al-driven global digital platform (based on behavioral data from

Stanford University) offering weight loss counseling services and related content to
anyone in the world

» Mass distribution of proprietary nutritional foods and supplements with exceptional
margins (distributed on-site and via e-commerce)

« Partnerships with extensive primary care physician networks with service and
product revenue sharing

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Daniel Lubeck

Daniel Lubeck’s current primary role is with Solis Capital Partners. Daniel Lubeck
currently services varies hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director and Co-Chairman of the Board
Dates of Service: December 31, 2015 - Present



Responsibilities: Leading the Board and focusing the company on strategic
matters

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Solis Capital Partners
Title: Founder and Managing Director
Dates of Service: December 31, 2002 - Present
Responsibilities: Founder and Managing Director

Name: Robert Allison

Robert Allison's current primary role is with Innovate Partners Emerging Growth &
Equity Fund I, LLC. Robert Allison currently services varies hours per week in their
role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

® Position: Director and Co-Chairman of the Board
Dates of Service: December 31, 2015 - Present
Responsibilities: Leading the Board and focusing the company on strategic
matters

Other business experience in the past three years:

o Employer: Innovate Partners Emerging Growth & Equity Fund I, LLC
Title: Principal and Managing Partner
Dates of Service: December 31, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Principal and Managing Partner

Name: Cynthia Stamper Graff

Cynthia Stamper Graff's current primary role is with Lindora Inc. Cynthia Stamper
Graff currently services Varies hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: December 31, 2015 - Present
Responsibilities: Focus the company on strategic matters

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Lindora Inc
Title: CEO



Dates of Service: December 31, 2009 - Present
Responsibilities: Lead the strategic initiatives of the company

Name: John Tangredi
John Tangredi's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

® Position: CEO, President
Dates of Service: April 01, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Providing strong leadership for the company by working with
the board and other executives to establish short and long-term goals, budgets,
plans, and strategies.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Lindora LLC
Title: VP of Operations
Dates of Service: December 31, 2015 - April 01, 2021
Responsibilities: Plan, direct, coordinate, and oversee operations activities in the
company

Name: Stephen Hui
Stephen Hui's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Chief Financial Otficer and Secretary
Dates of Service: May 17, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: responsible for managing the financial actions of the company.
Duties include tracking cash flow and financial planning as well as analyzing the
company's financial strengths and weaknesses and proposing corrective actions.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Western Dental
Title: VP of Strategic Finance
Dates of Service: September 30, 2013 - May 14, 2021
Responsibilities: Processing the financial activities of the company to maximize
the company's profits and plan for its growth

Name: Carol Farrell



Carol Farrell's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Chief People Officer
Dates of Service: April 30, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for developing and executing human resource and
operational strategy in support of the overall business plan and strategic
direction of the organization, specifically in the areas of succession planning,
talent management, change management, organizational and performance
management, training and development, and compensation.

Name: Steve Patterson
Steve Patterson's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: VP, Marketing
Dates of Service: December 31, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for strategic brand management, review budgets,
set goals, conduct market research, and help maintain an appropriate image of
the company.

Name: Tsz Ying (Amy) Lee
Tsz Ying (Amy) Lee's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Chief Medical Officer
Dates of Service: December 31, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: Responsible for managing the company's provider to provide
safe, effective medical services to the public. CMOs typically train new providers
on the company's policies and keep current medical staff up-to-date on changing
health regulations

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: PEAR
Title: Chief Medical Officer
Dates of Service: December 01, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Marketing and Education Content.

Other business experience in the past three years:



¢ Employer: Nucific
Title: Nutrition Product Advisor
Dates of Service: September 01, 2015 - Present
Responsibilities: Marketing, education content and Advisor

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, "us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the shares of
common stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are
sufficient to enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in
the Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential
investor regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the
other information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

The Company, is offering shares of common stock in the amount of up to $5.0m in this
offering, and may close on any investments that are made. Even if the maximum
amount is raised, the Company is likely to need additional funds in the future in order
to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons
relating to the Company itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the
Company manages to raise only the minimum amount of funds, sought, it will have to
find other sources of funding for some of the plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. [ssuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our



equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of vour
investment.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

This offering involves “rolling closings, ” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommeon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can



be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

The global outbreak of the COVID-19 virus is adversely impacting, and will continue
to adversely impact, our business and may adversely impact our liguidity.

The global outbreak of the coronavirus (COVID-19) has had and will continue to have
an adverse impact on our business as well as on the business environment and the
markets in which we operate. This global health crisis has also had a significant
adverse effect on overall economic conditions and may continue to negatively
impacted the overall economy for among other reasons, due to changes in consumer
behavior and confidence, health concerns and supply chain issues. The situation
remains dynamic and subject to rapid and possibly significant change, and accordingly
the full extent of the magnitude and duration of the negative impact to our business
from the COVID-19 pandemic cannot be predicted with certainty. While we have
taken steps to address the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, as a result of the
pandemic, we experienced significant disruption to our business, including with
respect to decreases in member recruitment and supply chain issues. As a result of the
“essential services” exemptions for medical providers, we have not suspended our in-
person counseling sessions. If there is another outbreak and such exemptions are not
available, we may need to begin offering virtual counseling sessions, which may not
be successful in meeting the needs or preferences of many of our members and
employees. This may result in decreases in our recruitment as well as a significant
decrease in our retention of members. Although we never ceased in-person
counseling sessions, changes in consumer behavior, including willingness to meet in
person, increasing unemployment levels and associated changes in household income,
as well as health concerns have impacted consumer demand for our services and
products, customer traffic at our clinics and recruitment and retention of members.
The perceived risk of infection or health risk may adversely affect traffic to our clinics
and, in turn, our business, liquidity, financial condition and results of operations,
particularly if any self-imposed or government-imposed restrictions are in place for a
significant amount of time. Our business depends on a number of third parties



including vendors, landlords, lenders, marketing partners, third-party technology
providers and suppliers. The COVID-19 outbreak may have a material adverse impact
on these parties and their ability to meet their obligations to us. Any such failure by
our third-party partners could negatively impact our ability to provide our products
and services to customers. Supply chain issues continue to adversely impact our
product sales, and we cannot predict how long supply shortages will continue. If a
significant percentage of our workforce, or the workforces of our suppliers and other
third-party partners, is unable to work, whether because of illness, quarantine,
limitations on travel or other government restrictions in connection with COVID-19,
our operations may be negatively impacted. The widespread health crisis also could
adversely affect the economy and financial markets, resulting in an economic
downturn that could affect consumer demand for our products and services. Our
customer purchasing patterns can be influenced by economic factors. The precise
impact, and extent thereof, on our business from the disruption of financial markets
and the weakening of overall economic conditions cannot be predicted with certainty.
Prolonged unfavorable economic conditions, including as a result of COVID-19, and
any resulting recession or slowed economic growth, may have an adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Competition from other weight management and wellness industry participants or the
development of more effective or more favorably perceived weight management
methods could result in decreased demand for our services and products.

The weight management and wellness marketplace is highly competitive. We compete
against a wide range of providers of weight management services and products. Our
competitors include: commercial weight management programs; weight loss and
wellness apps; surgical procedures; the pharmaceutical industry; the genetics and
biotechnology industry; self-help weight management regimens and other self-help
welight management products, services and publications, such as books, magazines,
websites, and social media influencers and groups; dietary supplements and meal
replacement products; healthy living services, coaching, products, content and
publications; weight management services administered by doctors, nutritionists and
dieticians; government agencies and non-profit groups that offer weight management
services; fitness centers; and national drug store chains. As we or others develop new
or different weight management services, products, methods or technologies,
additional competitors may emerge. Furthermore, existing competitors may enter
new markets or expand their offerings or advertising and marketing programs. More
effective or more favorably perceived diet and weight and healthy living management
methods, including pharmaceutical treatments, fat and sugar substitutes or other
technological and scientific advancements in weight management methods, also may
be developed. This competition may reduce demand for our services and products. The
purchasing decisions of weight management and healthy living consumers are highly
subjective and can be influenced by many factors, such as brand image, marketing
programs, cost, social media presence and sentiment, consumer trends, content and
user experience, and perception of the efficacy of the service and product offerings.
Moreover, consumers can, and frequently do, change approaches easily and at little
cost. For example, fad diets and weight loss trends, such as low-carbohydrate diets,



have adversely affected our revenues from time to time. Any decrease in demand for
our services and products may adversely affect our business, financial condition or
results of operations.

A failure to continue to retain and grow our subscriber base could adversely affect our
results of operations and business.

Subscriptions to our businesses generate a substantial portion of our revenue, and our
future growth depends upon our ability to retain and grow our subscriber base and
audience. To do so will require us to continue to evolve our subscription model,
address changing consumer demands and developments in technology and improve
our products while continuing to provide our members with guidance, compelling
content, and an inspiring community to enable them to develop healthy habits. We
have invested and will continue to invest significant resources in these efforts, but
there is no assurance that we will be able to successfully maintain and increase our
subscriber base or that we will be able to do so without taking steps such as reducing
pricing or incurring subscription acquisition costs that would affect our subscription
revenues, margin and/or profitability.

If we do not continue to develop new, innovative services and products or if our
services, products or brand do not continue to appeal to the market, or if we are
unable to successfully expand into new channels of distribution or respond to
consumer trends, our business may suffer.

The weight management and wellness marketplace is subject to changing consumer
demands based, in large part, on the efficacy and popular appeal of weight
management and healthy living programs. The popularity of weight management and
healthy living programs is dependent, in part, on their ease of use, cost and channels
of distribution as well as consumer trends. For example, consumers are increasingly
focusing on more integrated lifestyle and fitness approaches and may associate our
program with just food, nutrition and diet, which could adversely impact its
popularity. Our future success depends on our ability to continue to develop and
market new, innovative services and products and to enhance our existing services
and products, each on a timely basis, to respond to new and evolving consumer
demands, achieve market acceptance and keep pace with new nutritional, weight
management, healthy living, technological and other developments. We may not be
successful in developing, introducing on a timely basis or marketing any new or
enhanced services and products. Additionally, new or enhanced services or products
may not appeal to the market or the market’s perception of us. Our future success also
will depend, in part, on our ability to successfully distribute our services and products
through appealing channels of distribution, such as social media. Our failure to
develop new, innovative services and products and to enhance our existing services
and products, the failure of our services, products or brands to continue to appeal to
the market or the failure to expand into appealing new channels of distribution could
have an adverse impact on our ability to attract and retain members and subscribers
and thus adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Our business depends on the effectiveness of our advertising and marketing programs,
including the strength of our social media presence, to attract and retain members and



subscribers.

Our business success depends on our ability to attract and retain members and
subscribers. Our ability to attract and retain members and subscribers depends
significantly on the effectiveness of our advertising and marketing practices. In
addition, from time-to-time, we use the success stories of our members and
subscribers, and utilize brand ambassadors, spokespersons and social media
influencers, in our advertising and marketing programs to communicate on a personal
level with consumers. Actions taken by these individuals that harm their personal
reputation or image, or include the cessation of using our services and products, could
have an adverse impact on the advertising and marketing campaigns in which they are
featured. We and our brand ambassadors, spokespersons and social media influencers
also use social media channels as a means of communicating with consumers.
Unauthorized or inappropriate use of these channels could result in harmful publicity
or negative consumer experiences, which could have an adverse impact on the
effectiveness of our marketing in these channels. In addition, substantial negative
commentary by others on social media platforms could have an adverse impact on our
reputation and ability to attract and retain members and subscribers. If our advertising
and marketing campaigns do not generate a sufficient number of members and
subscribers, our business, financial condition and results of operations will be
adversely affected.

Our reputation could be impaired due to actions taken by our suppliers and other
partners.

We believe that our brands, including their widespread recognition and strong
reputation and goodwill in the market, are one of our most valuable assets and they
provide us with a competitive advantage. We sell our food products and supplements
predominately through our online store and at our studios. Most of our food and non-
food products are manufactured by third-party suppliers. Our suppliers and other
partners are independent third parties with their own financial objectives, third-party
relationships and brand associations. Actions taken by them, including violations of
cenerally accepted ethical business practices or breaches of law or contractual
obligations, such as not maintaining our quality and safety standards, could harm our
reputation. Also, our products may be subject to product recalls, brand confusion,
litigation or other deficiencies, which could harm our brands. Any negative publicity
associated with these actions or these third parties would adversely affect our
reputation and may result in decreased recruitment, and, as a result, lower revenues
and profits.

Loss of key personnel, strategic partners or consultants or failure to effectively
manage and motivate our workforce could negatively impact our sales of services and
products, business, financial condition and results of operations.

We depend on senior management and other key personnel and consultants, and the
loss of certain personnel or consultants could result in the loss of management
continuity and institutional knowledge and negatively affect our operations, brand
image and goodwill. We also depend heavily upon our weight loss counselors guides to
support our customers in their weight management efforts. If we fail to appropriately
manage and motivate our weight loss counselors, we may not be able to adequately



service our customers which could negatively impact our sales of services and
products. Changes in factors such as overall unemployment levels, local competition
for qualified personnel, prevailing wage rates and employment law, as well as rising
employee benefits costs, including insurance in the areas in which we operate, could
increase our labor costs and interfere with our ability to adequately retain qualified
individuals to provide support to customers. Additionally, our inability to attract and
retain qualified weight loss counselors could delay or hinder our successfully
executing our strategic initiatives.

Expiration or early termination by us of leases could have an adverse impact on our
financial results.

Qur operations, including our corporate offices, are located in leased office space and
many of our counseling sessions are held in leased space in retail centers. As leases
expire, we may not be able to renew them on acceptable terms or secure suitable
replacement locations. As we decide to relocate or close locations before the
expiration of the applicable lease term, we may incur payments to landlords to
terminate or “"buy out” the remaining term of the lease. Any of the above events could
adversely impact our financial results.

Our business may decline as a result of a downturn in general economic conditions or
consumer confidence.

Our business is highly dependent on subscriptions and product sales. A downturn in
general economic conditions or consumer confidence in any of our markets could
result in people curtailing or reallocating their discretionary spending which, in turn,
could reduce subscriptions and product sales. Any reduction in consumer spending
may adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations.

The seasonal nature of our business could cause our operating results to fluctuate.

We have experienced and expect to continue to experience fluctuations in our
quarterly results of operations due to the seasonal nature of our business. Historically,
the first quarter of the fiscal year is the most important quarter for

recruitments. Given the subscription nature of our services and products, failure to
realize recruitments during the winter season could negatively impact our
performance for the remainder of the vear. Seasonality also impacts relative revenue
and profitability of each quarter of the year, both on a quarter-to-quarter and year-
over-year basis. This seasonality could cause our share price to fluctuate as the results
of an interim financial period may not be indicative of our full year results.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service all of our debt and satisfy our
other liquidity requirements.

QOur ability to make scheduled payments on or to refinance our debt obligations and to
fund our planned capital expenditures and other ongoing liquidity needs depends on
our future performance, which may be affected by financial, business, economic,
demographic and other factors, such as attitudes toward weight management and
wellness programs and pressure from our competitors. As of the end of November
2021, we have an aggregate of $9.8mm in outstanding loans, including, two secured
loans in the aggregate amount of $6.8mm, both of which include various financial



covenants. We expect to pay the principal and interest due under the loan agreements
from a combination of our cash flows provided by operating activities and by
opportunistically using other means to repay or refinance our obligations as we
determine appropriate. There can be no assurance that we will maintain a level of cash
flows provided by operating activities in an amount sufficient to permit us to pay the
principal and interest on all of our outstanding debt or to comply with the financial
covenants. If our cash flows and capital resources are insufficient to fund our debt
service obligations or we are unable to maintain compliance with the financial
covenants in the loan agreements, we may be forced to reduce or delay investments
and capital expenditures, or to sell assets, seek additional capital or restructure or
refinance our indebtedness. Our ability, if any, to restructure or refinance our debt
will depend on the condition of the capital markets and our financial condition at such
time. Any refinancing of our debt, if available on acceptable terms or at all, could be at
higher interest rates and may require us to comply with more onerous covenants,
which could further restrict our business operations. The terms of existing or future
debt instruments may restrict us from adopting some of these alternatives. In
addition, any deterioration in our performance may result in a reduction of our credit
rating, which could harm our ability to incur additional indebtedness or our ability to
refinance our debt obligations on favorable terms or at all.

Any failure of our technology or systems to perform satisfactorily could result in an
adverse impact on our business.

We rely on software, hardware, network systems and similar technology, including
cloud-based technology, that is either developed by us or licensed from or maintained
by third parties to operate our websites, and other services and products such as the
recurring billing system associated with certain of our subscription plans, and to
support our business operations. As much of this technology is complex, there may be
future errors, defects or performance problems, including when we update our
technology or integrate new technology to expand and enhance our capabilities. Our
technology may malfunction or suffer from defects that become apparent only after
extended use. The integrity of our technology may also be compromised as a result of
third-party cyber-attacks, such as hacking, spear phishing campaigns and denial of
service (DOS) attacks, which are increasingly negatively impacting companies. In
addition, our operations depend on our ability to protect our information technology
systems against damage from third- party cyber-attacks, fire, power loss, water,
earthquakes, telecommunications failures and similar unexpected adverse events.
Disruptions in our websites, services and products or network systems could result
from a number of factors, including unknown technical defects, insufficient capacity,
the failure of our third-party providers to provide continuous and uninterrupted
service and unusual volume in traffic for our platforms. Such disruptions would be
most impactful if they occurred during peak activity periods and may impact
accessibility to our services and products. While we maintain disaster recovery
capabilities to return to normal operation in a timely manner, and we deploy multiple
parallel instances of our applications across multiple computer resources, we do not
have a fully redundant system that includes an instantaneous recovery capability. In
the event we experience significant disruptions, we may be unable to repair our



systems in an efficient and timely manner, which could have an adverse impact on our
business. As a result of such possible defects, failures, interruptions or other
problems, our services and products could be rendered unreliable or be perceived as
unreliable by customers, which could result in harm to our reputation and brands. Any
failure of our technology or systems could result in an adverse impact on our business.

Our reputation and the appeal of our services and products may be harmed by data
security breaches or privacy concerns.

Breaches of data security, website defacements and other malicious acts, which are
increasingly negatively impacting companies, could result in unauthorized access to
proprietary or customer information or data, including credit card transaction data, or
cause interruptions to our services and products. Such unauthorized access or
interruptions could harm our reputation and brands and expose us to liability claims,
and may result in the loss of existing or potential customers. We rely upon
sophisticated information technology systems to operate our business. In the ordinary
course of business, we collect, store and utilize confidential information (including,
but not limited to, personal customer information and data), and it is critical that we
do so in a secure manner to maintain the confidentiality and integrity of such
confidential information as well as comply with applicable regulatory requirements
and contractual obligations. We also have outsourced significant elements of our
information technology infrastructure and, as a result, we are managing many
independent vendor relationships with third parties who may or could have access to
our confidential information. The size and complexity of our information technology
and information security systems, and those of our third-party vendors with whom we
contract, make such systems potentially vulnerable to security breaches. While we
have invested, including by maintaining cybersecurity insurance coverage, and
developed systems and processes designed to protect such proprietary or customer
information or data, these measures are costly, and there can be no assurance that our
efforts will prevent service interruptions or security breaches. Existing, proposed or
new data privacy legislation and regulations, including interpretations thereof, could
also significantly affect our business. Data protection and privacy laws have been
enacted by the U.S. federal and state governments, including the California Consumer
Privacy Act (CCPA), which became effective on January 1, 2020, the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), and other relevant statutes. These laws
also typically include notification obligations and impose significant penalties and
potential liability for non-compliance. The data privacy and security regulatory
regime continues to evolve and is increasingly demanding. Many states are
considering privacy and security legislation and there are ongoing discussions
regarding a national privacy law. Variations in requirements across jurisdictions could
present compliance challenges, and any failures to comply with such requirements
may have an adverse effect on our business or results of operations. Further, many
jurisdictions require that customers be notified if a security breach results in the
disclosure of their personal financial account or other information, and additional
jurisdictions and governmental entities are considering such laws. In addition, other
public disclosure laws may require that material security breaches be reported. If we
experience, or in certain cases suspect, a security breach and such notice or public



disclosure is required in the future, our reputation, brands and business may be
harmed. Prospective and existing customers and clients may have concerns regarding
our use of private information or data collected on our apps and websites or through
our services and products, such as weight management information, financial data,
email addresses and home addresses. These privacy concerns could keep customers
and clients from using our apps and websites or purchasing our services or products,
and third parties from partnering with us. While no cybersecurity breach or attack to
date has had a material impact on our business or results of operations, there can be
no assurance that our efforts to maintain the security and integrity of our information
technology networks and related systems will be effective or that attempted security
breaches or disruptions would not be successful or damaging. In addition, the
transmission of computer viruses, or similar malware, could adversely affect our
information technology systems and harm our business operations. As a result, it may
become necessary to expend significant additional amounts of capital and other
resources to protect against, or to alleviate, problems caused by security breaches.
These expenditures, however, may not prove to be a sufficient protection or remedy.

Third parties may infringe on our brands and other intellectual property rights, which
may have an adverse impact on our business.

We currently rely on a combination of trademark, copyright, trade dress, trade secret
and other intellectual property laws and domain name dispute resolution systems to
establish and protect our proprietary rights, including our brands and technology. If
we fail to successfully enforce our intellectual property rights, the value of our brands,
services and products could be diminished and our business may suffer. Our
precautions may not prevent misappropriation of our intellectual property, including
reverse engineering of technology, particularly in foreign countries where laws or law
enforcement practices may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as in the United
States. Any legal action that we may bring to protect our brands and other intellectual
property could be unsuccessful and expensive and could divert management’s
attention from other business concerns. In addition, legal standards relating to the
validity, enforceability and scope of protection of intellectual property, especially in
Internet-related businesses, are uncertain and evolving. These evolving legal
standards may not sufficiently protect our intellectual property rights in thefuture.

We may be subject to intellectual property rights claims.

Third parties may make claims against us alleging infringement of their intellectual
property rights. Any intellectual property claims, regardless of merit, could be time-
consuming and expensive to litigate or settle and could significantly divert
management’s attention from other business concerns. In addition, if we were unable
to successfully defend against such claims, we may have to pay damages, stop selling
the service or product or stop using the software, technology or content found to be in
violation of a third party’s rights, seek a license for the infringing service, product,
software, technology or content or develop alternative non-infringing services,
products, software, technology or content. If we cannot license on reasonable terms,
develop alternatives or stop using the service, product, software, technology or
content for any infringing aspects of our business, we may be forced to limit our
service and product offerings. Any of these results could reduce our revenues or our



ability to compete effectively, increase our costs or harm our business.

This offering is being conducted on a “best efforts” basis and does not require a
minimum amount to be raised. As a result, we may not be able to raise enough funds
to fully implement our business plan and our investors may lose their entire
investment.

We are offering Shares in the amount of up to $5,000,000 in this offering, plus certain
bonus shares that may be issued, but may sell much less. The Offering is being
conducted on a “best efforts” basis and does not require a minimum amount to be
raised. If we are not able to raise sufficient funds, we may not be able to fund our
operations as planned, and our growth opportunities may be materially adversely
affected. Even if we raise the maximum amount we are seeking in this offering, we
may need additional funds in the future in order to grow, and if we cannot raise those
funds for whatever reason, including reasons outside our control, such as another
significant downturn in the economy, we may not survive.

Terms of subsequent financings may, adversely impact your investment.

Even if we are successful in this offering, we may need to engage in common equity,
debt, or preferred stock financings in the future. Your rights and the value of your
investment in the Shares could be reduced. Interest on debt securities could increase
costs and negatively impact operating results. Preferred stock could be issued in series
from time to time with such designations, rights, preferences, and limitations as
needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous to
those investors than to the holders of Shares. In addition, if we need to raise more
equity capital from the sale of equity securities, institutional or other investors may
negotiate terms at least as, and possibly more, favorable than the terms of your
investment.

Because no public trading market for the Shares currently exists, it will be difficult for
you to sell the Shares and, if you are able to sell the Shares, you may have to sell them
at a substantial discount to the price you paid for the Shares.

There is no public market for the Shares. Until the Shares are listed on an exchange, if
ever, you may not sell your Shares unless the buyer meets the applicable suitability
and minimum purchase standards. Therefore, it will be difficult for vou to sell your
Shares promptly or at all. If you can sell your Shares, you may have to sell them at a
substantial discount to the price you paid for the Shares.

No management or voting rights.

Holders of common stock issued in this offering, will be providing a voting proxy to
our CEO, which will allow our CEO to vote their shares. Consequently, the investment
in common stock does not carry with it any right to take part in the control or
management of our business, including, but not limited to, the election of directors.
Accordingly, our directors and stockholders who hold voting shares will control our
decisions. Therefore, you will have no influence or vote on any corporate matters, and
the voting shareholders and directors may take actions of which you disapprove. In
assessing the risks and rewards of an investment in common stock, you must be aware
that you are relying solely on the good faith, judgment, and ability of our directors,



officers, and employees to make appropriate decisions in respect to our management,
and investors in this offering, will be subject to the decisions of our directors, officers,
and employees.

Management discretion as to use of proceeds.

Qur success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this offering. The use of proceeds described herein is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

We are not likely to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

We currently intend to retain any future earnings for use in the operation and
expansion of our business. Accordingly, we do not expect to pay any cash dividends in
the foreseeable future but will review this policy as circumstances dictate.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by us. Unlike listed companies that are
valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation of private
companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk overpaying for
your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any shares of common stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is
subject to SEC limitations of transfer. This means that the shares that you purchase
cannot be resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are
transferring the stock back to the Company, to an "accredited investor, as part of an
offering registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for
the benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Foreign securities laws.

Prior to accepting any subscriptions from residents of foreign jurisdictions, we intend
to consult with local counsel to ensure we accept any such subscription in compliance
with local law. If, however, we accept any subscriptions and fail to comply with local
law, it may subject us to regulatory actions in such foreign jurisdictions.

The company is currently involved in two active legal matters relating to (a) an
employment claim, and (b) a malpractice claim.

(a) Plaintiff versus Lindora, LLC, Bariatric Weight Management Systems, a Medical
Group, Inc. (collectively the “Company”) and Former Company Executive. Complaint
filed on April 20, 2021 A former employee filed a complaint against the Company on
employment related matters. The company vehemently denies the allegations and are
ageressively defending the action. On December 7, 2021 the court ruled in favor of the
Company on an anti-SLAPP motion brought forth by the Company. The parties were
ordered to complete private mediation by November 21, 2022 and ordered to attend a
settlement conference before the court on March 6, 2023 with a trial date of March 20,
2023. Given that this is pending litigation, further information may be provided upon



request only after the Company’s consultation with its legal counsel. (b) Plaintiff
versus Lindora LLC, Bariatric Weight Management Systems, a Medical Group, Inc.
(collectively the “Company), Company Executive and Nurse Practitioner. Complaint
filed on November 4, 2021 Plaintiff’s family filed a malpractice claim against the
Company for medical negligence/negligence. The company vehemently denies the
allegations and are ageressively defending the action. Given that this is pending
litigation, further information may be provided upon request only after the
Company’s consultation with its legal counsel.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members.

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Number of | Type of

Stockholder Name Securities | Security [Percentage
Owned | Owned

Lindora Wellness Holdings LLC (majority owned

36.10% by Lind Holdi LLC (M d & C

10% y Lindora Holdings . ( E.mage 7,600,000 ommon 100.0
majority owned 25.27% by Solis Capital Partners Il Stock
LP),

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized equity stock. As part of the Regulation Crowdfunding
raise, the Company will be offering up to 1,000,000 of Common Stock.

Common Stock
The amount of security authorized is 9,000,000 with a total of 7,600,000 outstanding.
Voting Rights

General: One vote per share. Please see voting rights specific to investors in this
offering below.

Material Rights

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (the “CEQ™), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful
proxy and attorney, with the power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to,
consistent with this instrument and on behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities,
(ii) give and receive notices and communications, (iii) execute any instrument or
document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in the exercise of its
authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or appropriate in
the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest.
Such proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the
Subscriber is an individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the
Subscriber and, so long as the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or
reorganization of the Subscriber or any other entity holding the Securities. However,
the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of




1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 covering the

Common Stock.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Common Stock of this offering, you have granted your votes
by proxy to the CEO of the Company. Even if you were to receive control of your
voting rights, as a minority holder, you will have limited rights in regards to the
corporate actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities,
company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or
company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may
have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited influence on the
corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the company decides to issue more
shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less
than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being
less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount

earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends,
and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest

any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
e |nan IPO;
¢ To the company;
e To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.



Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $0.00
Number of Securities Sold: 7,600,000
Use of proceeds: Conversion of LLC interests into C-Corp equity.
Date: January 01, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including

those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
Year ended December 31, 2020 compared to year ended December 31, 2019
Revenue

Revenue for fiscal vear 2020 was $35,478,000, compared to fiscal yvear 2019 revenue of
$35,654,000. Annual Membership Revenue was steady despite the global pandemic.
The Company recognized $16,556,000 and $16,480,000 in membership revenue for the
years ended December31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Service Revenue was impacted
by COVID related protocols. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the
Company recognized service revenue of $2,796,000 and $3,662,000, respectively.
Product Revenue benefited from customers increased focus on healthy food and
supplements. The Company recognized $16,126,000 and $15,512,000 in product
revenue during the years ended December 31 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales in 2020 was $22,750,000, $22,750,000 in fiscal year 2019. Reduction on
compensation expenses were offset by the increased cost of products and services.



Additional COVID related safety supplies (masks, gloves, cleaning products, etc.) was
a key driver in the increased expenses.

Gross margins

Gross profit for 2020 was $12,728,000 compared to $12,904,000 for 2019, a decrease of
$176,000. The decrease was mainly caused by an increased supplies expenses and shift
in revenue mix (decrease in Service revenue vs increase in Product revenue)

Expenses

Operating Expenses for 2020 were $12,645,000 compared to $13,264,000 in 2019, a
decrease of $619,000. More than half of the decrease is related to the reduction in
marketing and advertising expenses.

Historical results and cash flows:

Compensation expenses were the largest cost of sales expenses in the last two years,
representing 27.1% and 29.7% of net revenue in 2020 and 2019 respectively.
Historically, cash from operations as well as loans have been fueling the growth of the
company. With the expected growth capital raised in this process, the company
anticipates accelerating growth of earnings in the near future, which can be used to
further reinvest in the company’s future growth.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of November 30, 2021, the company had cash and cash equivalents of $2.92mm.

The company has a revolving line of credit with Avid Bank, for a total amount
available of $2.50mm. This line of credit currently has an outstanding balance of

$2.50mm.

The company has outstanding term loans with Montage Capital with a balance of
$3.00mm

The company has outsanding subdebt loans with various parties with a total balance
of $3.76mm

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital

resources available?)

We are actively working with our existing financial partner to extend the existing loan
agreements. The funds of this campaign are intended for driving our growth
initiatives.



Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the

total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

The funds from this campaign are meant to be used for our growth initiatives. It is not
necessary to the viability of the company.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

Based on the current operations, expenses and revenue, we will be able to operate
indefinitely if we raise the minimum.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

Based on the current operations, expenses and revenue, we will be able to operate
indefinitely if we raise the maximum.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?

(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

We are not currently seeking future capital beside the funds from this campaign. The
company has a history of raising capital via our existing financial partners (Sponsors
and lenders)

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Avid Bank
Amount Owed: $2,500,000.00
Interest Rate: 4.75%

e Creditor: Montage Capital Term Loan II
Amount Owed: $850,000.00
Interest Rate: 12.5%
Maturity Date: March 31, 2023

e Creditor; Montage Capital Term Loan III
Amount Owed: $2,150,000.00
Interest Rate: 12.5%
Maturity Date: August 31, 2024



e Creditor: Various Sub Debt Holders
Amount Owed: $3,760,000.00
Interest Rate: 12.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2022

® Creditor: Marnell LLC
Amount Owed: $376,452.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

¢ Creditor: Lindora Inc.
Amount Owed: $117,851.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

Related Party Transactions

e Name of Entity: Lindora, Inc.
Names of 20% owners: Former entity
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $117,851 as of November 30th,
2021.
Material Terms: In 2015, a note was issued to Lindora, Inc. in the principal
amount of $117,851 for repayment of amounts owed for past due warehouse
rent. The note bears interest at 5% per annum and is due in monthly payments of
$2,000 plus interest in arrears, beginning on the achievement of targeted trailing
12 Months' EBITDA, as defined of $2,500,000 or more. Please see financials for
more details. As of November 30th, 2021, $117,851 is currently outstanding.

o Name of Entity: Marnell, LLC
Names of 20% owners: Marnell, LLC is a company controlled by Dr. Stamper, a
control group member of Lindora LLC which has now been converted to Lindora
Wellness, Inc.
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $376,452
Material Terms: In 2015, a note was issued to Marnell, LLC, a company
controlled by Dr. Stamper, a control group member, in the principal amount of
$576,452 for repayment of amounts owed for past due corporate office rent.
Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021,
$376,452 is owed to Marnell, LLC,

¢ Name of Entity: Allen Cornerstone Ventures L.P.
Names of 20% owners: Allen Cornerstone Ventures L.P.
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $50,000
Material Terms: In 2017, a note was issued to Allen Cornerstone Ventures L.P.



Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021,
$50,000 is owed to Allen Cornerstone Ventures L.P.

Name of Entity: Marino Family 2016 Trust

Names of 20% owners: Marino Family 2016 Trust

Relationship to Company: Lender

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $100,000

Material Terms: In 2017, a note was issued to Marino Family 2016 Trust. Please
refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021, $100,000
is owed to Marino Family 2016 Trust.

Name of Entity: Thomas E. and Molly S. Davin Family Trust

Names of 20% owners: Thomas E. and Molly S. Davin Family Trust

Relationship to Company: Lender

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $250,000

Material Terms: In 2017, a note was issued to Thomas E. and Molly S. Davin
Family Trust. Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November
30, 2021, $250,000 is owed to Thomas E. and Molly S. Davin Family Trust.

Name of Entity: Hidden Mountain Ranch, LLC

Names of 20% owners: Hidden Mountain Ranch, LLC

Relationship to Company: Lender

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $250,000

Material Terms: In 2017, a note was issued to Hidden Mountain Ranch, LLC.
Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021,
$250,000 is owed to Hidden Mountain Ranch, LLC.

Name of Entity: MDietician

Names of 20% owners: MDietician

Relationship to Company: Lender

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $100,000

Material Terms: In 2017, a note was issued to MDietician. Please refer to our
financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021, $100,000 is owed to
MDietician.

Name of Entity: Rowden Living Trust

Names of 20% owners: Rowden Living Trust

Relationship to Company: Lender

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $250,000

Material Terms: In 2017, a note was issued to Rowden Living Trust. Please refer
to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021, $250,000 is
owed to Rowden Living Trust.

Name of Entity: Robert G. and Kristen Mauger Allison
Names of 20% owners: Robert G. and Kristen Mauger Allison
Relationship to Company: Lender



Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $250,000

Material Terms: In 2017, a note was issued to Robert G. and Kristen Mauger
Allison. Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30,
2021, $250,000 is owed to Robert G. and Kristen Mauger Allison.

e Name of Entity: Aronoff Capital
Names of 20% owners: Aronoff Capital
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $1,500,000
Material Terms: In 2019, a note was issued to Aronoff Capital. Please refer to our
financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021, $1,500,000 is owed to
Aronoff Capital.

e Name of Entity: Jacoranda Investments
Names of 20% owners: Jacoranda Investments
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $500,000
Material Terms: In 2019, a note was issued to Jacoranda Investments. Please
refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021, $500,000
is owed to Jacoranda Investments.

¢ Name of Entity: Hidden Mountain Ranch, LLC
Names of 20% owners: Hidden Mountain Ranch, LLC
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $100,000
Material Terms: In 2019, a note was issued to Hidden Mountain Ranch, LLC.
Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021,
$100,000 is owed to Hidden Mountain Ranch, LLC.

e Name of Entity: Rowden Living Trust
Names of 20% owners: Rowden Living Trust
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $100,000
Material Terms: In 2019, a note was issued to Rowden Living Trust. Please refer
to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021, $100,000 is
owed to Rowden Living Trust .

o Name of Entity: Allen Cornerstone Ventures L.P.
Names of 20% owners: Allen Cornerstone Ventures L.P.
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $50,000
Material Terms: In 2019, a note was issued to Allen Cornerstone Ventures L.P.
Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021,
$50,000 is owed to Allen Cornerstone Ventures L.P.

¢ Name of Entity: Mark and Ellen Genender Family Trust



Names of 20% owners: Mark and Ellen Genender Family Trust

Relationship to Company: Lender

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $100,000

Material Terms: In 2019, a note was issued to Mark and Ellen Genender Family
Trust. Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30,
2021, $100,000 is owed to Mark and Ellen Genender Family Trust.

* Name of Entity: Robert A. and Eugenie Damon
Names of 20% owners: Robert A. and Eugenie Damon
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $60,000
Material Terms: In 2019, a note was issued to Robert A. and Eugenie Damon.
Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30, 2021,
$60,000 is owed to Robert A. and Eugenie Damon.

¢ Name of Entity: Robert G. and Kristen Mauger Allison
Names of 20% owners: Robert G. and Kristen Mauger Allison
Relationship to Company: Lender
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: $100,000
Material Terms: In 2019, a note was issued to Robert G. and Kristen Mauger
Allison. Please refer to our financial audit for more details. As of November 30,
2021, $100,000 is owed to Robert G. and Kristen Mauger Allison.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $38,000,000.00

Valuation Details:

The company determined its pre-money valuation based on an analysis of multiple
factors. Valuation analysis was performed internally, consistent with "fair value”
valuation methodologies for illiquid investments. We are currently holding Lindora at
37.8M. This valuation incorporates both objective valuation and performance
measures, as well as our subjective judgments. The following methods were used to
generate a "fair value” valuation for Lindora 1) public comparables, including Weight
Watchers, Nutrisystem and Medifast, among others, that compete with, target the
same customer base, are affected by many of the same trends, and offer
complementary or similar solutions; 2) revenue multiples from relevant private
company transactions in the Weight Loss and related clinics industries. We also
applied a discount to both methodologies to conservatively adjust for Lindora's
business profile. Through these methodologies we arrived at a $38 million equity
valuation, or 1.1x NTM revenue.

Lindora Wellness, Inc. has set its valuation internally, without a formal third-party
independant evaluation. The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully
diluted basis. In making this calculation, we have assumed: (i) the company only has



one class of common stock; (ii) the company currently has no outstanding warrants,
options or other securities with a right to acquire shares; and (iii) the company has no
outstanding convertible securities.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $10,000.00 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

o Marketing
96.5%
Our primary avenue for revenue is patient services, and the main way we grow
patients is through placing demand generating advertisements. We plan to use a
large portion of the fund raised to fund marketing expenses in support of patient
growth

If we raise the over allotment amount of $5,000,000.00, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
3.5%

e Marketing
40.0%
Our primary avenue for revenue is patient services, and the main way we grow
patients is through placing demand generating advertisements. We plan to use a
large portion of the fund raised to fund marketing expenses in support of patient
growth

e (perations
56.5%
In support of the expected patient growth, we need to expand our operation
capacity from both people and infrastructure standpoint. We expect to use the

majority of the fund raised to expand our operational capacity.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.



Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://www.lindora.com/ (https://www.lindora.com/annualreport).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.
Updates
Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/lindora

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.



EXHIBIT B TO FORM C

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW FOR Lindora
Wellness, Inc.

[See attached]
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Managers and Members
Lindora, LLC and Affiliates

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lindora, LLC and Affiliates, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related consolidated
statements of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in members’ deficit and cash flows for the years then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free of material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion,
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Lindora, LLC and Affiliates at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the consolidated results
of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

A b firm af Errat & Young Global Limied
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Lindora, LLC's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has
recurring losses from operations, has a working capital deficiency, and has stated that substantial doubt exists
about the Company's ability to continue as agoing concern. Management's evaluation of the events and
conditions and management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 2. The consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The consolidating details appearing in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements are
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Gamt + MLLP

July 22, 2021

A b firm af Errat & Young Global Limied



LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
December 31,
2020 2019
Current Assets:
Cash 3 3,780 1,117
Accounts receivable, net 251 405
Inventory 1,456 1,336
Prepaid expenses 421 566
Total Current Assets 5,908 3,424
Property and equipment, net 2,575 2,509
Goodwill 76 76
Other assets 651 425
Total Assets $ 9,210 6,434
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 1,459 931
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 2,954 3,359
Line of credit 2,489 1,873
Contract liability 2,409 2,237
Current portion of deferred rent and rent incentives 78 63
Current portion of long-term debt 2,906 684
Current portion of notes payable to related parties 4,181 1,163
Total Current Liabilities 16,476 10,310
Deferred rent and rent incentives, net of current portion 622 514
Notes payable to related parties, net of current portion - 2,993
Long-term debt, net of current portion 2,530 1,898
Warrant liability - 99
Total Liabilities 19,628 15,814
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Members' Deficit:
Series A preferred, 152,535 units authorized; 152,372 and
150,897 issued and outstanding, respectively
liquidation preference of $21,332 and $21,126 as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively 15,630 15,506
Common units, 33,598 units authorized and issued 104 104
Accumulated deficit (26,152) (24,990)
Total Members' Deficit (10,418) (9,380)
Total Liabilities and Members' Deficit 3 9,210 6,434

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements




LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(IN THOUSANDS)

December 31,

2020 2019
Net Sales $ 35478 % 35,654
Cost of Sales:
Compensation 9 606 10,603
Products and services 9,236 8,203
Occupancy 3,908 3,944
Total Cost of Sales 22,750 22,750
Gross Profit 12,728 12,904
Operating Expenses:
General and administrative 9 826 10,104
Marketing and advertising 2,819 3,160
Total Operating Expenses 12,645 13,264
Income (Loss) from Operations 83 (360)
Other Expenses (Income):
Interest, net 1,323 1,096
Other (10) 199
Total Other Expenses 1,313 1,295
Loss Before Provision for Income Taxes (1,230) (1,655)
Income Tax (Benefit) Expense (68) 96
MNet Loss and Comprehensive Loss 5 (1,162) % (1,751)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements



LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS' DEFICIT

Balance at December 31, 2018

Issuance and exercise of preferred unit
warrants

MNet loss

Balance at December 31, 2019

Issuance and exercise of preferred unit
warrants

Met loss
Balance at December 31, 2020

(IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT UNIT AMOUNTS)

Preferred Common Accumulated Members'
Units Amount Units Amount Deficit Deficit
149,307 $ 15,370 33598 $ 104 $ (23,239) $ (7,765)

1,590 136 - - 136

) - - - (1,751) (1,751)

150,897 15,506 33,598 104 (24,990) (9,380)
1,475 124 - - 124

- - - - (1,162) (1,162)

152,372 & 15,630 33,598 % 104 % (26,152) % (10,418)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements



LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(IN THOUSANDS)

Year ended December 31,

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net loss 5
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Gain on revaluation of warrant liability

Amortization of discount on debt and notes payable

Amortization of discount on line of credit
Change in operating assets and liabilities

Inventory

Accounts receivable, net

Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Deferred rent and rent incentives

Contract liability

Met Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of notes payable to related parties
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Fees paid on issuance of notes payable to related parties
Fees paid on issuance of long-term debt
Repayment on long-term debt
Proceeds from line of credit, net
Net (repayment) borrowing from inventory financing
Proceeds from Small Business Administration loans

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash
Cash at Beginning of Year

Cash at End of Year $

2020 2019
(1,162) $ (1,751)
773 673
- 61
(153) (10)
225 155
50 31
(120) (10)
154 127
145 152
(226) (107)
469 (821)
(9) 124
123 (19)
172 11
441 (1,384)
(882) (938)
(882) (938)
: 2,510
1,000 -
(6) -
(20) (3)
(661) (730)
566 481
(293) 423
2,518
3,104 2,679
2,663 357
1,117 760
3,780 $ 1,117




LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)

Year ended December 31,

2020
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest B 992
Cash paid for state income taxes $ 25
Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Debt discount recorded upon issuance of Series A preferred warrant units issued
in conjunction with issuance of notes and long- term debt payable $ 124
Leasehold improvement recorded in rent incentives $ 114
Property and equipment acquired and included in accounts payable and
accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 354

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT UNIT AMOUNTS)

1. ORGANIZATION

Lindora, Inc., incorporated in California on June 14, 1991, acquired the brand and associated
intellectual property of Lindora Medical Clinic, founded in 1971, On June 25, 2009, Lindora, LLC
("Lindora”) incorporated under the laws of Delaware as the successor to Lindora, Inc. All employees,
leases, intellectual property rights, product inventory, and associated liabilities were transferred to
Lindora at the time.

Lindora markets comprehensive, medically based weight loss and wellness programs that teach
patients how to lose weight rapidly through a ketogenic eating plan, exercise, and strategies to combat
stress. Lindora operates 33 clinic locations in Southern California under the Lindora Clinics brand and
markets food, supplements, and wellness products under the Lindora Nutrition, Lindora Wellness, and
Lindora Fresh brands.

Baratric Weight Management Systems, A Medical Group, Inc. ("BWMS") was incorporated in the state
of California on July 18, 1994 as a professional medical corporation. BWMS is engaged in the practice
of medicine and the performance of other related health care services at various locations provided by
Lindora. Lindora provides medical office space; non-physician personnel, financial, and accounting
services; billing and collection services; management information systems; and marketing, consulting,
and other administrative services to BWMS.

On February 6, 2015, Solis Capital Partners and Innovate Partners formed Lindora Holdings, LLC
("Lindora Holdings") to acquire the Series A preferred units of Lindora, previously issued to Presidio
Investors ("Presidio”) and contributed the Presidio units to Lindora along with additional consideration
for the purchase of B6,395 newly issued Series A preferred units of Lindora. Upon closing of the
transaction, Lindora Holdings owned 72% of Lindora. Lindora Holdings is the majority member of
Lindora. See Mote 10,

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP™) and include all
adjustments necessary for the fair presentation of Lindora’s and its consolidated affiliates’ and variable
interest entities’ (collectively, the “Cnmpany"] consolidated financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows.

A going concern basis of accounting contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of
liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company's ability to continue as a going concern is
dependent on a combination of factors and assumptions, including the growth and retention of its
annual membership revenue, the sale of products and ancillary services, the ability to control costs and
continued access to financing.

The Company has evaluated whether there are conditions and events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern within one year
after the date the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.



LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT UNIT AMOUNTS)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company incurred net losses of $1,162 and generated
$441 of cash in operations. As of December 31, 2020, the Company had a cash balance of $3,780,
negative working capital of $10,568 and an accumulated deficit of $26,152. Revenue recorded by the
Company has not grown compared to prior year and the Company continues to incur necessary costs
and expenses related to its ongoing operations. Currently, the Company’s net sales are not at a level
to sustain ongoing operations of the Company.

Of significant concern is the Company’s ability to meet the various maturity due dates of its multiple
outstanding debt obligations. Specifically the Company’s line of credit with an original maturity date of
February 28, 2021 was extended until July 15, 2021, provided the Company acquired at least $10,000
in equity capital which has not occurred as of the date the 2020 consolidated financial statements were
available to be issued; the Company's Term | loan matures on August 16, 2021 and the Company's
notes payable to related parties with an original maturity date of May 31, 2021 has been extended to
September 30, 2021. See Note 12. The Company’s line of credit, certain of its long-term debt, and its
notes payable to related parties are all considered in default as of the date the consolidated financial
statements are available to be issued due to the violation of certain debt covenants regarding the timing
of issuance of the audited 2020 consolidated financial statements and cross-default provisions in
certain other debt agreements. The Company has commenced discussions with the various debt
holders to extend the due dates beyond the existing maturity dates and obtain waivers for the events
of default. However, there are no assurances that additional amendments and waivers will be granted
or that the Company will be able to renegotiate acceptable terms of the various debt instruments.

To continue as a going concern, the Company will need additional capital resources. The Company is
seeking out additional funding to support its operations and meet its debt obligations. Management can
provide no assurances that any sources of a sufficient amount of financing will be available to the
Company on favorable terms, if at all. Although the Company has a history of raising capital to fund its
operations, there can be no assurance that it will be able to continue to do so. If the Company cannot
secure additional funding, the Company may be forced to reduce spending dramatically, liquidate
assets where possible and/or suspend or curtail operations. Any of these actions can materially harm
the Company's business and future prospects, including its ability to continue as a going concern.

Due to these uncertainties, the Company has concluded there is substantial doubt about the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern through one year from the date the 2020 consolidated financial
statements are available to be issued. The consolidated financial statements and footnotes have been
prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going concern, and do not include any
adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets or the
amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the possible inability of the Company to
continue as a going concern.



LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT UNIT AMOUNTS)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lindora, 1its controlled affiliates and a
variable interest entity (*VIE™) for which the Company is the primary beneficiary. In accordance with
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 810-
10, Consolidation — Overall, BWMS is considered a VIE for which Lindora and its members are the primary
beneficiaries. Accordingly, BWMS has been consolidated with Lindora. All significant intercompany
balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. BWMS recognized $19,352 and
$20,145 of net sales and $19,588 and $18,660 of total expenses for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively. Lindora recognized $5,440 and $3,238 of management fee revenue for
the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, for management services provided to
BWMS related to the provision of office space, non-physician personnel, financial, and accounting
services; hilling and collection services; management information systems; and marketing, consulting,
and other administrative services. The cash flows of BWMS are included in the accompanying
consolidated statements of cash flows. The Company's consolidated balance sheets include
approximately $122 and $403 of assets, and $6,158 and $6,285 of liabilities related to BWMS as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and
disclosures at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates affecting the consolidated
financial statements have been determined on the basis of the most current and best available information
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results from the resolution of such estimates
and assumptions may differ materially from those used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue upon the transfer of goods or services to a customer at an amount that
reflects the expected consideration to be received in exchange for those goods or services.

Revenues are primarily derived from the sale of weight loss and wellness programs and memberships;
related services; and the food, supplements, and wellness products as outlined below.

Annual Membership Revenue

The Company offers bundled weight loss and wellness services as part of an annual membership
contract. Each membership contract contains a single performance obligation, that is, to make the
weight loss and wellness services available to the member during the term of the membership contract.

- 10 -



LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT UNIT AMOUNTS)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

This obligation is satisfied over time as the services are rendered each month. The membership
contract revenue includes fees for annual services, including a lab draw and an examination by a
medical provider and monthly services, such as vitamin booster injections and weight loss counseling.
The annual membership fees comprise an activation fee received in advance of the services being
rendered and a monthly recurring service fee for the remainder of the contract term. The activation fee
IS deferred and recognized in revenue over the estimated membership life of 18 months. The monthly
recurring service fee represents the fee payable for services and benefits available to the member each
month. Any services not utilized in that month are forfeited by the member and accordingly there are
no performance obligations unsatisfied at the end of each month under the membership contract. The
monthly recurring service fee is recognized in revenue in the month it is earned. The Company
recognized $16,556 and $16,480 in membership revenue for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019, respectively.

Service Revenue

Service revenue, distinct from membership revenue, is derived from the sale of weight loss programs
and related services, such as vitamin booster injections and body contouring. Payments for services
are generally received in advance of the services being rendered. The performance obligation is met
when the service is performed. Accordingly, payments for services are deferred and recognized as
revenue as services are rendered, based on patient usage. For the years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019, the Company recognized service revenue of $2,796 and $3,662, respectively.

The Company offers four-week, six-week, and ten-week weight loss programs. Revenue on weight loss
programs is recognized as the weight loss treatment is administered. Once the weight loss program is
activated, the patient has up to 12 months to utilize the weight loss program. Weight loss programs
generally expire and are forfeited by the patient after one year from the purchase date. Any unutilized
weight loss treatment and/or forfeited weight loss program balance is recognized in revenue on the
expiration date or forfeiture date.

The Company sells vitamin booster injections to both weight loss and wellness patients. Vitamin
booster injections are either purchased individually or in blocks of five or ten injections. Payment is
generally received in advance and is deferred and recognized as revenue when the vitamin booster
injection is administered. Vitamin booster injection balances generally expire and are forfeited by the
patient after one year from the purchase date. Any unutilized and/or forfeited vitamin booster injection
balance is recognized in revenue on the expiration date or the forfeiture date.

The Company offers body contouring services in certain clinic locations. The body contouring services
are typically sold in packages of three, six, or nine treatments. Payments are generally received in
advance of the services being performed and are deferred. Treatments are administered at least once
per week, and the revenue is recognized when the treatment is administered. Treatment balances
generally expire and are forfeited by the patient after one year from the purchase date. Any unutilized
and and/or forfeited treatment balance is recognized in revenue on the forfeiture or expiration date.

-11 -



LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT UNIT AMOUNTS)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Product Revenue
The Company sells fully prepared ketogenic meals, protein bars, protein drinks, healthy snacks, meal
replacements, wellness products, vitamins, supplements, and support tools. The revenue for these
items is recognized at point of sale, or when products are delivered to the patient, online customer, or

retailer. The Company recognized $16,126 and $15,512 in product revenue during the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Contract Liability

The contract liability represents the portion of member activation fees and payments for services
received in advance of delivery for which the performance obligation has not been satisfied. The
Company's consolidated balance sheets include approximately $2,409 and $2,237 of contract liabilities
as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Shipping and Handling

The Company treats shipping and handling fees on the sale of products as fulfillment costs and not as
a separate performance obligation. Shipping and handling costs associated with the selection and
delivery of products to online customers are included in costs of sales on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. Revenues from shipping and handling
costs billed to customers of $113 and $91 in the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively, are offset against shipping costs included in cost of sales on the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. For the vyears ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recorded total shipping and handling costs of $51 and
$24, respectively.

Refunds

The Company generally sells products and services that are not subject to a contractual right of refund.
However, the Company accepts refund claims in specific circumstances as an accommodation to the
patient or customer to facilitate a positive ongoing business relationship. Refunds generally correspond
with the period in which revenue is recognized and are recorded as a reduction in revenue in that
period. Historically refunds have not been material.

Customer Payments and Incentives

Revenue is recorded net of variable consideration, such as discounts and allowances. The Company
reduces its products and services revenue for program credits, promotional discounts, and courtesy
discounts applied at the time of sale based on actual discount and promotions applicable at the date of
sale. Accordingly, the Company does not use estimates in determining variable consideration applied
to sales in determining net revenue and promotions applicable at the date of sale. Accordingly, the
Company does not use estimates in determining variable consideration applied to sales in determining
net revenue.

_12_



LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT UNIT AMOUNTS)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Sales Commissions

The Company expenses sales commissions on service sales when incurred (amortization period is one
year or less) and these expenses are recorded within cost of sales.

Cash
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, cash consisted of cash on deposit and petty cash.
Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at amounts due from customers net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.
As a general policy, the Company determines an allowance for doubtful accounts by considering a number
of factors, including the length of time accounts receivable are past due, the Company's previous loss
history, the patient’s current ability to pay its obligation to the Company, and the condition of the general
economy and the industry as a whole. The Company writes off accounts receivable when it is assessed
that recovery Is not probable, and payments subsequently received on such receivables are credited to
the allowance for doubtful accounts. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 the balances due from patients
amounted to $55 and $807, and the allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to $7 and $480,
respectively.

Inventory

Inventory consists primarily of dietary and weight loss products, packaging materials, and support tools
and is stated at the lower of cost ar net realizable value. Cost is determined using a method that
approximates the first-in, first-out inventory cost flow assumption. Net realizable value is determined using
the estimated selling price, applicable in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs to dispose.
Dietary and weight loss products generally have a maximum product shelf life of 12 to 24 months. The
Company evaluates the need for inventory reserves associated with obsolete, slow-moving, and non-
sellable inventory by reviewing estimated net realizable values on a periodic basis. As of December 31,
2020 and 2019, inventory reserves amounted to $45 and $19, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation
and amortization expenses are calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the related assets, which range from two to five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or remaining term of the related lease.

Betterments, renewals, and extraordinary repairs that materially extend the useful life of the asset are
capitalized; other repairs and maintenance charges are expensed as incurred. The cost and related
accumulated depreciation applicable to assets retired are removed from the accounts, and the gain or
loss on disposition, if any, is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Internal-Use Software Development Costs

In accordance with FASB Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2015-05, , Intangibles — Goodwill and
Other — Internal — Use Software — Customer’s Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing
Arrangement, the Company capitalizes certain costs to develop its internal-use software when
preliminary development efforts are successfully completed, management has authorized and
committed project funding, it is probable that the project will be completed, and the software will be
used as intended. Such costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the
related asset, which approximates three years. Costs incurred prior to meeting these criteria, together
with costs incurred for training and maintenance, are expensed as incurred.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment, long-lived assets, such as
property and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized
on long-lived assets when indicators of impairment are present and the undiscounted cash flows
estimated to be generated by those assets are less than the carrying amount of the assets. In such
cases, the carrying value of these assets is adjusted to their estimated fair value and assets held for
sale are adjusted to their estimated fair value less estimated selling expenses.

No impairment losses of long-lived assets were recognized for the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019,

Advertising

The Company incurs advertising costs, in various media, designed to generate sales from patients,
which are expensed as incurred. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, advertising costs
amounted to $2,369 and $2,409, respectively, and are included in operating expenses on the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

|ssuance Costs

Debt issuance costs related to debt instruments are deferred, recorded as a reduction of the related
debt liability, and amortized to interest expense over the remaining term of the related debt liability
(excluding revolving credit lines) utilizing the effective interest method. Debt issuance costs related to
revolving credit lines are amortized to interest expense on a straight-line basis over the remaining term
of the related line of credit.

Deferred Rent and Deferred Rent Incentives

The Company’s leases are accounted for under the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 840, Leases, which
require leases to be evaluated and classified as operating or capital leases for financial reporting
purposes. Costs for operating leases that include incentives, such as payment escalations or rent
abatements, are recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Additionally,
inducements and incentives received from lessors are treated as a reduction of costs over the term of
the agreement on a straight-line basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income Taxes

Lindora is a limited liability company and has elected to be treated as a partnership for federal income
tax purposes and a limited liability company for California state income tax purposes. BWMS has
elected to be treated as a C corporation for federal and California state income tax purposes. The
members of Lindora separately account for the Company’s items of income, deduction, losses, and
credits on their individual personal returns; therefore, these consolidated statements do not include a
provision for federal income taxes for Lindora. A provision for the California limited liability company
fee and state income taxes has been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
See Note 5.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits on the income tax
expense line in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.
Accrued interest and penalties are included on the related tax liability line in the consolidated balance
sheets.

Financial Instruments and Concentrations of Credit and Business Risk

The Company maintains cash balances that can, at times, exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation. The Company has not experienced any losses in these accounts and believes it
Is not exposed to any significant credit risk.

The Company's accounts receivable, which are unsecured, expose the Company to credit risks, such as
collectability. The Company controls credit risk by performing periodic reviews of the credit activities of
those customers during the business relationship, regularly analyzing the collectability of accounts
receivable, and recording allowances for doubtful accounts when these receivables become uncollectable.

The Company's accounts payable can expose the Company to business risks, such as supplier
concentrations. During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company entered into a supply agreement
with Sysco Corporation to manage the supply and distribution of proprietary and third party vendor
products to the Company's clinic locations. Supplier concentrations for the vyears ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019 consisted of four key suppliers, either directly or indirectly through Sysco,
that accounted for 93% and 66%, respectively, of total purchases related to Lindora Products. Two of
these suppliers accounted for 23% and 28%, and Sysco accounted for 21% and 19% of the Company’s
accounts payable as of December 31, 2020, and 2019, respectively. The Company continues to introduce
new products supplied by new vendors that will reduce this concentration, and accordingly, management
does not believe a loss of one of these suppliers would have a material effect on the Company:.

Medical Malpractice

The Company purchases medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis of up to $2,000
per occurrence. In 2020 and 2019, there were no malpractice liabilities or malpractice insurance
recelvables.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Membership Unit-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for profits interest units in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation
— Stock Compensation ("ASC 7187), which requires all unit-based payments to employees, including
profits interest units, to be recognized in the consolidated statements of operations based on the fair value
of those awards calculated using a valuation model on the grant date, with the related compensation
expense recorded over the requisite service period of the award. ASC 718 also requires the consideration
of whether a performance condition is probable in the determination of the fair value of awards, and if the
probability of the performance condition is not estimable, then the fair value determination and
compensation recognition will be deferred until a probability can be ascribed (see Note 11).

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company adopted ASU Mo. 2018-13, Fair Value
Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework—Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair
Value Measurement. This new standard modifies certain disclosure requirements on fair value
measurements. This new standard does not materially change the disclosures in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842) ("ASU 2016-02"), which
requires lessees to recognize most leases on the balance sheet. This is expected to increase both
reported assets and liabilities. The standard will be effective for the Company on January 1, 2022,
although early adoption is permitted. Lessees and lessors will be required to apply the new standard
at the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in which they first apply the
new guidance, using a modified retrospective approach to adoption. The primary effect of adoption will
be the reguirement to record right-of-use assets and corresponding lease obligations for operating
leases on the consolidated balance sheet. The requirements of this standard include a significant
increase in required disclosures.

The FASB subsequently issued the following amendments to ASU 2016-02, which have the same effective
date and transition date of January 1, 2022

- ASU No. 2018-10, Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases, which amends certain narrow
aspects of the guidance issued in ASU 2016-02,

- ASU No. 2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements, which allows for a transition
approach to initially apphy ASU 2016-02 at the adoption date and recognize a cumulative effect
adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in the period of adoption, as well as an
additional practical expedient for lessors to not separate non-lease components from the
associated lease component,

- ASU No. 2018-20, Leases (Topic 842). Narrow Scope Improvements for Lessors which effectively
clarifies and improves upon certain aspects of the guidance issued in 2016-02; and

- ASU 2019-01, Leases (Topic 842): Codification Improvements, provides additional guidance on
determining the fair value of the underlying asset, presentation of cash flows and transition
disclosure provisions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact that the new standard may have on its
consolidated financial statements and disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326):
Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments ("ASU 2016-13"), which changes the
impairment model for most financial assets and certain other instruments from an “incurred loss”

to a new “expected credit loss” methodology. The FASB followed up with ASU No. 2019-04,
Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses, Topic 815, Derivatives
and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial Instruments, in April 2019 and ASU No. 2019-05, Financial
Instruments — Credit Losses (Topic 326): Targeted Transition Relief, in May 2019 to provide further
clarification on this topic.

The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including intenm pernods within
those fiscal years, and requires full retrospective application upon adoption. Early adoption is permitted.
The Company does not believe that the adoption of this accounting guidance will have a material impact
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In October 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-17, Consolidation (Topic 810): Targeted Improvements
to Related Party Guidance for Variable Interest Entities, which requires indirect interests held through
related parties in common control arrangements be considered on a proportional basis for determining
whether fees paid to decision-makers and service providers are variable interests. The guidance is effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is permitted. The Company currently
does not believe that the adoption of this accounting guidance will have a material impact on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

In December 2019, the FASE issued ASU No. 2019-12, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the
Accounting for Income Taxes ("ASU 2019-12") which simplifies the accounting for income taxes by
removing certain exceptions to the general principles in Topic 740. The guidance is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted. The Company currently does not believe
that the adoption of this accounting guidance will have a material impact on the accompanying consolidated
financial statements and related disclosures.

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-06, Debt - Debt with Conversion and Other Options
(Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging-Confracts in Entity’s Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40):
Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity’'s Own Equity ("ASU 2020-08"),
which simplifies the accounting for convertible instruments. The guidance removes certain accounting
models that separate the embedded conversion features from the host contract for convertible
instruments. ASU 2020-06 allows for a modified or full retrospective method of transition. This update
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and interim periods within those fiscal
years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this change will
have on its consolidated financial statements.
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3. INVENTORY

Inventory consisted of the following as of December 31:

2020 2019

Protein bars, drinks, snacks, and meals $ 587 % 826
Vitamins and supplements 795 443
Other products 74 67
$ 1,456 % 1,336

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment consisted of the following as of December 31

2020 2019

Leasehold improvements $ 4843 $ 4.657
Computer software 2,262 2,225
Furniture and fixtures 484 641
Office equipment 273 227
Computer equipment 628 689
Medical equipment 708 578
Construction-in-progress 390 275
9,588 9,292

Less accumulated depreciation (7,013) (6,783)
$ 2575 % 2,509

Depreciation expenses related to property and equipment amounted to $773 and $673 for the years ended

December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

5. INCOME TAXES

BWMS is taxed as a C corporation for federal and California state income tax purposes. This requires the

Company to determine a provision for federal and California state income taxes for BWMS,

As of December 31, BWMS' reported (loss) income before the provision for income taxes consisted of the

following:

United States

_15_

$

2020

2019

(236)

$
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LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020
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5. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The federal and state income tax (benefit) provision for BWMS is summarized as follows:

2020 2019
Current
Federal $ (79) % 79
State (3) 14
Other - -
Total current tax (benefit) expense (82) 93
Deferred
Federal - -
State - -
Other - -
Total deferred tax expense - -
Total tax (benefit) expense $ (B2) % 93

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of (a) temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for iIncome tax purposes, and
(b) operating losses and tax credit carryforwards.

The tax effects of significant items comprising the Company’s deferred taxes as of December 31 were as

follows:
2020 2019
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued compensation k3 43 3 45
Accrued bonuses - 14
Allowance for bad debts 2 134
Contract liability 674 626
Gift cards A7 49
Net operating losses non-current 671 585
Other 10 10
Total deferred tax assets 1,447 1,463
Total deferred tax habilities - -
Valuation allowance (1,447) (1,463)
MNet deferred taxes % - $ -

ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes, requires that the tax benefit of net operating losses, temporary differences,
and credit carryforwards be recorded as an asset to the extent management assesses that realization is
‘more likely than not.” Realization of future tax benefits is dependent on the Company’s ability to generate
sufficient taxable income within the carryforward period. Because of the Company’s recent history of
operating losses, management is of the view that recognition of the deferred tax assets arising from the
above-mentioned future tax benefits is currently not more likely than not to be realized and, accordingly,
has provided a full valuation allowance,
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5. INCOME TAXES (Continued)

The valuation allowance as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 was $1,447 and $1,463, respectively.

MNet operating losses and tax credit carryforwards as of December 31 were as follows:

Expiration

2020 2019 Years

Net operating losses, P 2373 % 2,187 Does not

federal (post-December expire
31, 2017)

Tax credits, federal - - -

Net operating losses, state - 1,797 -

Tax credits, state 13 13 -

The effective rate of the Company's tax (benefit) expense for income tax differs from the federal statutory
rate as follows:

2020 2019
Statutory rate (21.0) % 21.0 %
State tax (7.1) 7.6
Change in valuation allowance (9.0) (24.2)
Meals and entertainment 0.1
Parking benefits 2.1 0.6
Federal tax return true up - 1.2
Fines and penalties 0.1 -
Effective tax rate (34.8) % 6.2 %

As of December 31, 2020, tax years ending on or after December 31, 2016 are subject to examination by
the Internal Revenue Service, and tax years ending on or after December 31, 2015 are subject to
examination by the California Franchise Tax Board.

6. CREDIT FACILITIES

On August 31, 2018, the Company entered into a credit agreement with AvidBank ("Avid") to provide senior
credit facilities, including a revolving line of credit of up to $2,500, secured by the assets of the Company.
The revolving line of credit for working capital and general corporate purposes had a maturity date of
February 28, 2021 as of December 31, 2020 (see Note 12) and contains various reporting reguirements,
as well as financial covenants under which the Company must maintain specified levels of liquidity and
meet predetermined earnings performance criteria.

The revolving line of credit, which is advanced as outlined below, bears interest on the daily balance at
150 basis points above the financial institutions’ prime rate published in the Money Rates section of the
Western Edition of The Wall Street Journal or such other rate of interest publicly announced from time to
time by Avid as its prime rate, subject to a minimum interest rate of 4.75%. As of December 31, 2020 and
2019, the effective rate was 5% and 6%, respectively.
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6. CREDIT FACILITIES (Continued)

In terms of the credit agreement, the Company has the ability to draw down up to $2,500 of the revolving
line of credit subject to a minimum retained committed contract value on all membership contracts of
$5,500. In the event that the retained committed contract value on all membership contracts is between
$5,000 and $5,500, the Company’s ability to draw down on the revolving line of credit is subject to a
maximum of £2,000, which is further reduced to £1,500 in the event that the retained committed contract
value on all membership contracts 1s less than $5,000. The retained committed contract value on all
membership contracts is subject to a minimum of $4,500.

The revolving line of credit may be repaid at any time prior to the maturity date, without any prepayment
penalty after August 31, 2019,

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company was in compliance with all financial covenants;
however, as of the date the 2020 consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, the
Company was not in compliance with the financial statement covenant requiring the delivery of the audited
financial statements within 120 days after the Company's fiscal year end and such noncompliance is
considered an Event of Default as defined in the credit agreement. As of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
the Company had drawn $2,500 and $1,900, respectively, on the revolving line of credit; there was no
further availability on the borrowing base as of December 31, 2020, See Note 12.

7. LONG-TERM DEBT

As of December 31, long-term debt consisted of the following:

2020 2019

Note payable: Building $ 35 & 56
Mote payable: Montage Capital 2,970 2,610
SBA PPF Loans 2,518 -
£ 5523 § 2,666

On September 15, 2016, the Company entered into a note payable with its landlord to finance tenant
impravements for its Fullerton clinic carried out in 2014. The note was issued with an original balance
of $118, requires annual principal and interest payments with a maturity in 2022, and bears interest at
7% per annum.

On February 16, 2018, the Company entered into a mezzanine financing agreement with Montage Capital
Il L.P. ("Montage”) to provide a non-revolving term loan of not more than $3,250 with an original maturity
date of February 14, 2021 (“Term | Loan”).

The Term | Loan was advanced in three tranches at the option of the Company, based on the Company

achieving pre-defined operational performance criteria. The Company exceeded the performance
criteria and, accordingly, the entire Term | Loan of $3,250 was advanced by December 31, 2018.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

The Term | Loan was interest only until February 14, 2019, after which the loan principal became
repayable in equal monthly installments of $80. On October 29, 2019, the maturity date on the Term |
Loan was extended to August 16, 2021 and the terms of repayment were amended such that no
repayment was required for six months starting November 1, 2019 until April 1, 2020, after which the
repayments resumed at $80 per month.

The interest rate at inception of the Term | Loan was 11.75% per annum, amended on August 31, 2018 to
12.5% with interest payable monthly in arrears. The Term | Loan is collateralized by the assets of the
Company, subject to such collateral or security interest being subaordinated to senior debt.

As a condition of the Term | Loan, on June 28, 2018, the Company entered into a warrant agreement
whereby Montage is entitled to subscribe for warrant units (“Term | Loan Warrant Units™) equivalent to up
to 2.53% of the fully diluted units in issue of the Company. The warrant agreement was amended on
August 31, 2018, entitling Montage to subscribe for up to 2.78% of the fully diluted units in issue of the
Company. On October 29, 2019, the number of warrant units granted was amended, and accordingly, the
number of Term | Loan Warrant Units granted as of December 31, 2020 and 2019 was 5,904, which
represented 2.53% and 2.74% of the fully diluted units in issue as of December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. The warrants, which are transferable, are separately exercisable in whole or in part at any
time up to June 28, 2028, at an exercise price of $116.29 per warrant unit, and are considered legally
detachable from the Term | Loan.

As a condition to the amendment on October 29, 2019, the Company entered into a warrant agreement
whereby Montage is entitled to subscribe for warrant units equivalent to up to 0.30% of the fully diluted
units in issue of the Company. The number of Term | Loan Warrant Units granted for the year ended
December 31, 2019 were 648 units, which represented 0.30% of the fully diluted units in issue as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019. The warrants which are transferable, are separately exercisable in whole
or in part at any time up to October 29, 2029, at an exercise price of $181.04 per warrant unit, and are
considered legally detachable from the Term | Loan.

On March 24, 2020, the Company entered into an amendment to the mezzanine financing agreement
with Montage whereby Montage agreed to advance an additional non-revolving term loan of not more
than $2,000 maturing on March 24, 2023 ("Term Il Loan™). The non-revolving Term Il Loan was to be
advanced in three tranches at the option of the Company, based on the Company achieving pre-defined
operational performance criteria. The first tranche of $1,000 was advanced on closing on March 24,
2020.

The Company did not draw down the remaining two tranches and such availability has expired. The
Term Il Loan is interest only until March 31, 2021, after which the loan principal will be repayable in
equal monthly installments of $25.The interest rate is 12.5% with interest payable monthly in arrears,
The Term Il Loan is collateralized by the assets of the Company, subject to such collateral or security
interest being subordinated to senior debt.
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7. LONG-TERM DEET (Continued)

As a condition of the Term Il Loan, Montage was entitled to subscribe for 1,405 warrant units on the
advance of the first tranche, which represented 0.60% of the fully diluted units in issue as of December
31, 2020 ("Term Il Loan Warrant Units™). The warrants, which are transferable, are separately
exercisable in whole or in part at any time up to March 24, 2030, at an exercise price of $181.04 per
warrant unit, and are considered legally detachable from the Term |l Loan.

In accordance with ASC Topic 480-10, Distinguishing Liabilities From Equity - Overall, the warrants
have been recorded as a liability at fair value on their issuance date and remeasured at fair value each
subsequent reporting period until exercised or expired. Approximately $53 and 39 of the loan proceeds
of $4,250 was allocated to the warrants based on the loans’ and warrants’ relative fair values at their
time of issuance in 2020 and 2019, respectively. Based on fair value remeasured at
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company recognized a gain on revaluation of the warrant liability of
$153 and %10, respectively, which is reflected in other expenses (income) in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss. The allocation of proceeds to the
warrants created a debt discount of $109 and $53 to Term | Loan and Term Il Loan, respectively, which
is being amortized in the accompanying consclidated statements of operations and comprehensive
loss using the effective interest method.

Further, the Company incurred lender costs of $68 at the inception of the Term | Loan, a loan
amendment fee of $15 on the Term | Loan and $20 at the inception of the Term Il Loan. Unamaortized
lender costs of $87 and $84 remain as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Due to the default of the Company to deliver its audited 2020 financial statements by May 31, 2021,
the Company is in violation of its debt covenants as of the date the consolidated financial statements
are available to be issued, which is considered an Event of Default as defined by the Montage Capital
debt agreement; accordingly, the total balance of the Montage Capital debt has been classified as
current in the Company's consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2020.

On March 27, 2020, the U.S. federal government enacted the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security Act ("CARES Act”). The CARES Act includes a provision for a Paycheck Protection Program
("PPP") administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration ("SBA") and further amended by the
Paycheck Protection Program Flexibility Act of 2020 ("PPP Flexibility Act”), which was enacted on June 5,
2020 (collectively the "PPP Legislation™).

On April 8, 2020, the Company received PPP Loans in aggregate of $2,518 ("PPP Loans"). The PPP
Loans, which have a two-year term, bear interest at a rate of approximately 1.0% per annum. The
application for the PPP Loans required that the Company certify, in good faith, that economic uncertainty
resulting from effects of the COVID-19 pandemic made the loan request necessary to support the ongoing
operations of the Company. As a condition of the PPP Loans, the Company was required to certify that
the PPP Loans would be applied to retain and/or rehire employees, maintain payroll and meet lease
obligations.
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

In compliance with the terms set forth in the PPP Legislation, the Company has applied for forgiveness of
the full amount outstanding on the PPP Loans. Such forgiveness, if any, will be determined, subject to
limitations, based on the use of loan proceeds in accordance with the provisions of the PPP Legislation.
To the extent that there is an unforgiven portion of the PPP Loans, this may be repaid by the Company at
any time prior to maturity with no prepayment penalty. The repayment period begins on the date on which
the amount of forgiveness 1s determined. See Note 12,

Interest expense related to the long-term debt and the related party notes payable (see Note 8) amounted

to $1,323 and $1,096 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively, and is included in
interest, net on the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss.

Future contractual maturities of the long-term debt are as follows:

Years Ending Unamortized Net, After
December 31: Face Value Discount Discount
2021 $ 2243 5 58 % 2,185

2022 2,830 25 2,805

2023 450 4 446

5,523 87 5,436

Less current portion 2,993 87 2,906
i 2530 3 - % 2,530

8. NOTES PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTIES

As of December 31, notes payable to related parties consisted of the following:

2020 2019
Note payable to Lindora, Inc. 118 118
Note payable to Marnell, LLC 377 377
Note payable to Lenders 1,250 1,250
Note payable to Individual Lenders 2,000 2,000
Mote payable to New Lenders 510 510

5 4,255 § 4,255

In 2015, a note was issued to Lindora, Inc. in the principal amount of $118 for repayment of amounts
owed for past due warehouse rent. The note bears interest at 5% per annum and iIs due in monthly
principal payments of $2, plus interest in arrears, beginning on the achievement of targeted trailing 12
Months' EBITDA, as defined, of $2,500 or more. Any remaining balance is to be repaid by February
15, 2024,

- 24 -



LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES
MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2020
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT UNIT AMOUNTS)

8. NOTES PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

In 2015, a note was issued to Marnell, LLC, a company controlled by Dr. Stamper, a control group
member, in the principal amount of $377 for repayment of amounts owed for past due corporate office
rent. The note bears interest at 5% per annum and is due in monthly principal payments of $8, plus
interest in arrears, beginning on the achievement of targeted trailing 12 months’ EBITDA of $2,500 or
more. Any remaining balance is to be repaid by February 15, 2024 . The notes payable to Lindora, Inc.,
and Marnell, LLC contain a default interest provision that levies an additional 2% interest per annum in
the event of default and also contain certain cross-default provisions. Specifically, as the Company's
Credit Facilities and Montage Capital debt are considered in default as of the date the 2020
consolidated financial statements are available to be issued (see Notes 6 and 7) the notes payable to
Lindora, Inc. and Marnell, LLC are also considered in default, and accordingly, the total balance of such
notes payable has been classified as current in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2020.

On April 1, 2017, the Company entered into a series of agreements with seven private individuals
(“Lenders”) to provide a term loan of not less than $1,000 and not more than $1,500. The Lenders
comprise investors in Innovate Partners, a unit holder of Lindora Holdings, and Dr. Amy Lee, the
majority unit holder of BWMS, both control group members and considered related parties.

The minimum loan advance required to participate in the term loan was $50. The term loan, which
originally matured on March 31, 2019, bears interest at a rate of 10% per annum with interest payable
monthly in arrears. The loan is collateralized by the assets of the Company, subject to such collateral
or security interest being subordinated to any senior debt or up to $5,000 in mezzanine financing. The
term loan does not carry any restrictive covenants. Any Lender who made an advance of $250 or more
("Eligible Lender”) was eligible to subscribe for warrants. Each warrant granted the holder the right to
purchase Series A preferred units for $0.01 per unit (“exercise price”) in an amount equal to one-and-
one half (1.5) unit for each $2 advanced. Of the loan proceeds of $1,250, $63 was allocated to the
warrants based on the loan’s and warrants’ relative fair values. The allocation of proceeds to the
warrants created a debt discount of $63 (“original debt discount”) that is being amortized in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss using the effective
interest method.

On August 7, 2018, the term loan was amended to provide for an extension on the term loan's maturity
to March 31, 2020. The term loan bears interest at a rate of 11% per annum with interest payable
monthly in arrears. Additionally, as part of the amendment, all Lenders were entitled to subscribe for
warrants. Each warrant entitled the holder the right to purchase Series A preferred units for $0.01 per
unit ("exercise price”) in an amount equal to one-and-one quarter (1.25) unit for each $2 advanced. Of
the loan proceeds of $1,250, $61 was allocated to the new warrants based on the loan's and warrants’
relative fair values. The allocation of proceeds to the warrants created a debt discount of $61 that is
being amortized, along with the remaining balance of the original debt discount of $63, in the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss using the effective
interest method.

On March 20, 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with Lenders to amend the term loan to
provide for an extension to May 31, 2021. As part of the amendment, all Lenders were entitled to
subscribe for warrants. Each warrant entitled the holder the right to purchase Series A preferred units
for $0.01 per unit (“exercise price”) in an amount equal to one (1.0) unit for each $1 advanced.
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8. NOTES PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

The allocation of proceeds to the warrants created a debt discount of $104 that is being amortized,
along with the remaining balance of the original debt discount of $124, in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss using the effective interest method.

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the principal balance outstanding on the term loan was $1,250,
and the number of Seres A warrant units exercised was 2,783 and 1,533, FES[]EGtiM’El}'.

On January 31, 2019, the Company entered into a loan agreement with two private individuals
(“Individual Lenders”) to provide a term loan of $2,000. The Individual Lenders comprise investors in
Solis Capital Partners, a unit holder of Lindora Holdings, a control group member and considered a
related party. The term loan, with an original maturity date of January 31, 2021, bears interest at a rate
of 10% per annum with interest payable monthly in arrears. The loan is collateralized by the assets of
the Company, subject to such collateral or security interest being subordinated to any senior debt of up
to $7,500. The term loan does not carry any restrictive covenants. The Individual Lenders are eligible
to subscribe for 1,335 warrant units, equivalent to 0.62% of the fully diluted units outstanding at the date
of the advance. Each warrant unit grants the holder the right to purchase one (1) Series A preferred unit
for $0.01 per unit (“exercise price”). Of the loan proceeds of $2,000, $113 was allocated to the warrants
based on the loan's and warrants’ relative fair values. The allocation of proceeds to the warrants created
a debt discount of $113 that is being amortized in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations
and comprehensive loss using the effective interest method.

On January 27, 2020, the Company entered into an agreement with the Individual Lenders to amend the
term loan to provide for an extension to May 31, 2021. As part of this amendment, the Individual Lenders
were entitled to subscribe for 225 warrants. Each warrant entitled the holder the right to purchase one
Series A preferred unit for 50.01 per unit ("exercise price”). The allocation of proceeds to the warrants
created a debt discount of $20 that is being amortized, along with the remaining balance of the original
debt discount of $113, in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive
loss using the effective interest method. See Note 12.

As of December 31, 2020 and, 2019, the principal balance outstanding on the term loan was $2,000
and the number of Series A warrant units exercised was 1,560.

On September 20, 2019, the Company entered into a series of agreements with six private individuals
("New Lenders)” to provide a term loan of not less than $510. The New Lenders comprise investors in
Innovate Partners and Solis Capital Partners, unit holders of Lindora Holdings, a control group member
and considered related parties. The term loan, which matures on May 31, 2021, bears interest at a rate
of 10% per annum with interest payable maonthly in arrears. The loan is collateralized by the assets of
the Company, subject to such collateral or security interest being subordinated to any senior debt. The
term loan does not carry any restrictive covenants, The New Lenders are eligible to subscribe for
warrants. Each warrant granted the holder the right to purchase Series A preferred units for $0.01 per
unit (“exercise price”) in an amount equal to one (1) unit for each $2 advanced. Of the loan proceeds
of $510, $23 was allocated to the warrants based on the loan’'s and warrants' relative fair values.

The allocation of proceeds to the warrants created a debt discount of $23 that is being amortized in the

accompanying consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss using the effective
interest method.
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8. NOTES PAYABLE TO RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

As of December 31, 2020 and 2019, the principal balance outstanding on the term loan was $510 and
the number of Series A warrant units exercised was 255,

Future contractual maturities of notes payable to related parties are as follows:

Unamortized Met, After

Years Ending December 31: Face Value Discount Discount
2021 3 3,760 $ 74 % 3,686

2022 - - -

2023 - - -

2024 495 - 495

4,255 74 4,181

Less current portion 4,255 74 4,181

3 - % - $ -

The above notes are subordinate to the senior debt, details of which are outlined in Note 6 and 7. See
Mote 12.

9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

The Company is obligated under noncancelable operating leases for its facilities and certain property
and equipment, which expire on various dates through May 2031 with certain renewal options. Certain
leases contain: (1) escalation clauses, which are expensed on a straight-line basis; and (2) tenant
improvement allowances, which are initially recorded as a liability and amortized over the life of the
related lease as a reduction of rent expense. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, rent
expense related to these leases totaled $2,833 and $2,904, respectively.

As of December 31, 2020, the approximate future annual minimum lease payments under all
noncancelable operating leases were as follows:

Cash

Years En::ling December 31: F*EJ.}FI"I'IEﬂtS
2021 % 2,940

2022 2,659

2023 2,269

2024 1,947

2025 1,085

Thereafter 1,155

3 12,055

Litigation

The Company is subject to certain legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of
business. The Company does not believe that the amount of liability, if any, as a result of these
proceedings and claims will have a materially adverse effect on the Company's consolidated financial
position, results of operations, or cash flows.
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10. MEMBERS’ DEFICIT
Series A Preferred Units
The Series A preferred units contain a 10% cumulative preferred return, no redemption features, and
the same voting rights as those of the common units and receive preference over the common unit
holders upon liquidation. Series A preferred unit holders are entitled to a liquidation preference, as
defined, of $140 per unit, before any distribution of assets to common unit holders.

Common Units

The common units have the right to one vote per unit, pro rata normal distributions, and pro rata
liquidating distributions and contain no redemption, conversion, or preferential rights.

Profits Interest Units

The Company issued profits interest units, as defined in its Amended and Restated Operating
Agreement dated August 21, 2018, in favor of seven of its executive officers and a consultant,

As described in Note 2, ASC 718 requires the fair value estimate at the grant date of profits interest
units to factor in the probability of the performance condition, which is a change of control (*performance
condition”). Since the probability of a change of control cannot be reasonably estimated until the event
occurs, the profits interest units had no fair value on their grant date and will not be re-valued until the
event occurs, in accordance with ASC 718. These units are not exercisable until the performance
condition has occurred and participate in the fair market value of any additional capital distributions
above a predefined initial distribution threshold. Of these units, 5,767 contain an initial distribution
threshold of $13,889, 18,931 contain an initial distribution threshold of $23,800 and the remaining
14,675 units contain an initial distribution threshold of $35,000. The maximum contractual term of these
units shall be the earlier of the occurrence of the performance condition or the termination of the unit
holders’ continuous service, at which time any unvested units will be forfeited.

The following is a summary of the profits interest units authorized, issued, and outstanding as of
December 31, 2020:

Total outstanding, beginning of year 24,698
Issued 14,675
Exercised -
Forfeited -
Total outstanding, end of year 39,373
Total vested, end of year 32,963
Authorized and available to be issued, end of year 627

These units are not part of the consolidated statement of changes in members' deficit until exercise of
such units occurs.
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11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company has a qualified 401(k) savings plan (the "Plan”) that provides for eligible employees (as
defined) to make voluntary contributions to the Plan. The Company makes contributions to the Plan on
a discretionary basis. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, the Company made matching
contributions under the Plan of $94 and $104, respectively.

12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events that have occurred after the consolidated balance
sheet date through July 22, 2021, the date that the consolidated financial statements were available to
be issued, and determined that there were no subsequent events or transactions that required
recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements, except as disclosed below.

On or about February 28, 2021, the Company entered into an amendment to the credit agreement to
extend the maturity date on the credit facility from February 28, 2021 to June 30, 2021. In terms of this
amendment, the Company will be entitled to extend the maturity date on the credit facility provided the
Company obtains at least $12,000 in equity capital. No equity capital was raised by June 30, 2021. On
May 12, 2021, the credit agreement was amended again to extend the maturity date on the credit facility
to July 15, 2021 provided the Company acquires at least $10,000 in equity capital. No equity capital
was raised prior to the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

The Company was also not in compliance regarding the requirement to provide its 2020 annual financial
statements to two debt holders. The amended credit agreement extended the requirement from April
30, 2021 to May 31, 2021. The mezzanine financing agreement required the statements by April 30,
2021. In both cases the statements were not provided by their respective due dates and such
noncompliance was considered an Event of Default. The Company's notes payable to Lindora, Inc. and
Marnell, LLC contain certain cross-default provisions, and accordingly, such notes payable are also
considered in default on the date the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued.

The term loan balance of $3,760 to related parties with a maturity date of May 31, 2021 was extended
to September 30, 2021.

On March 17, 2021, Lindora was notified by the SBA that Lindora’s PPP loan of $486 and any accrued

interest were forgiven. The BWMS PPP loan balance of $2,032 and any accrued interest were also
forgiven by the SB) on June 21, 2021,
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LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES

SUPPLEMENTARY CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2020
(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
Lindora, LLC BWMS Eliminations Consolidated
Current Assets:
Cash $ 3,782 $ (2) 3,780
Accounts receivable, net 203 48 - 251
Intercompany 2,939 - (2,939) -
Inventory 1,456 - - 1,456
Prepaid expenses 421 - - 421
Total Current Assets 8,801 46 (2,939) 5,908
Property and equipment, net 2,575 - - 2,575
Goodwill - 76 76
Other assets 651 - 651
Total Assets $ 12,027 122 (2,939) % 9,210
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 1,450 $ 1,459
Accrued expenses and other current liahilities 2,144 810 2,954
Line of credit 2,489 2,489
Contract liability 2,409 - 2,409
Intercompany - 2,939 (2,939) -
Current portion of deferred rent and rent incentives 78 - - 78
Current portion of long-term debt 2.906 2,906
Current portion of notes payable to related parties 4,181 - - 4,181
Total Current Liahilities 13,257 6,158 (2,939) 16,476
Deferred rent and rent incentives, net of current
portion 622 622
Long-term debt, net of current portion 2,530 2,530
Total Liabilities 16,409 6,158 (2,939) 19,628
Members' Deficit:
Series A preferred units, liquidation preference of 15,630 15,630
$21,332 and $21,126 as of December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively
Common units, 33,598 units authorized and issued 103 1 - 104
Paid in capital (8,354) - 8,354 -
Accumulated deficit (11,761) (6,037) (8,354) (26,152)
Total Members' Deficit (4,382) (6,036) - (10,418)
Total Members" Deficit and Liabilities 3 12,027 % 122 % (2,939) % 9,210

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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LINDORA LLC AND AFFILIATES

SUPPLEMENTARY CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2019
(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
Lindora, LLC BWMS Eliminations Consolidated
Current Assets:
Cash $ 1,117 % - % 1,117
Accounts receivable, net 78 327 - 405
Intercompany 3,139 - (3,139) -
Inventory 1,336 - - 1,336
Prepaid expenses 566 - - 566
Total Current Assets 6,236 327 (3,139) 3,424
Property and equipment, net 2,509 - - 2,509
Goodwill - 76 76
Other assets 425 - 425
Total Assets 3 9170 § 403 % (3,139) 6,434
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' DEFICIT

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 931 % - 3 - 931
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 2,450 909 3,359
Line of credit 1,873 - - 1,873
Contract liability - 2,237 - 2,237
Intercompany 3,139 (3,139) -
Current portion of deferred rent and rent incentives 63 - - 63
Current portion of notes payable to related parties 1,163 - - 1,163
Current portion of long-term debt 684 - - 684
Total Current Liabilities 7,164 6,285 (3,139) 10,310
Deferred rent and rent incentives, net of current portion 514 - - 514
MNotes payable to related parties, net of current portion 2,993 - - 2,993
Long-term debt, net of current portion 1,898 - 1,898
Warrant liability 99 - - 99
Total Liabilities 12,668 6,285 (3,139) 15,814

Members' Deficit:
Series A preferred units, liquidation preference of 15,506 - - 15,506

$21,126

Common units, 33,598 units authorized and issued 103 1 - 104
Paid in capital (8,354) - 8,354 -
Accumulated deficit (10,753) (5,883) (8,354) (24,990)
Total Members' Deficit (3,498) (5,882) - (9,380)
Total Liabilities and Members' Deficit % 9,170 % 403 % (3.139) % 6,434
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LINDORA, LLC AND AFFILIATES

SUPPLEMENTARY COMSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(IN THOUSANDS)
Lindora, LLC BWMS Eliminations Consolidated
Met Sales 5 16,126 % 19352 % - % 35,478
Cost of Sales:
Compensation - 9,606 - 9,606
Products and services 8,161 1,075 - 9,236
Occupancy 1,173 2,735 - 3,908
Total Cost of Sales 9,334 13,416 - 22,750
Gross Profit 6,792